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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO

COURT FILE NO.:
Mickey Thrasher and Kimberly Cyr
on behalf of themselves and all others
similarly situated
Plaintiffs

V.

Rocky Mountain Auto Brokers, Inc.,
Defendant

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND

NATURE OF ACTION

1. Plaintiffs, Mickey Thrasher and Kimberly Cyr (collectively “Plaintiffs”),
bring this putative class action complaint against Defendant, Rocky Mountain Auto
Brokers, Inc. (“RMAB?”), under the Electronic Fund Transfer Act (“EFTA”), 15 U.S.C. §
1693 et seq., and Regulation E, 12 C.F.R. part 205, individually and on behalf of all
others similarly situated.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1693m(g)
and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.

3. Venue is proper before this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), as the
acts and transactions giving rise to Plaintiffs’ action occurred in this district and

Defendant transacts business in this district.
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THE ELECTRONIC FUND TRANSFER ACT

4. The EFTA is a federal statute that regulates electronic fund transfers—in
particular, preauthorized transfers—initiated by consumers through financial institutions.

5. Congress passed the EFTA “to provide a basic framework establishing the
rights, liabilities, and responsibilities of participants in electronic fund and remittance
transfer systems.” 15 U.S.C. 8 1693(b).

6. Courts have observed that it was “[t]lhe dependency of electronic fund
transfer systems on computers and the resulting absence of any human contact with the
transfer [that] motivated Congress to pass the EFTA, as well as the lack of a written
record.” Vigneriv. U.S. Bank Nat’l Ass’n., 437 F. Supp. 2d 1063, 1066 (D. Neb. 2006).

7. In passing the EFTA, however, Congress noted that “[t]he primary
objective of [the EFTA] . . . is the provision of individual consumer rights.” 15 U.S.C. 8§
1693(b).

8. “One objective of the EFTA is to ‘insure that consumers are not forced to
use [electronic fund transfers].”” Kemply v. Cashcall, Inc., No. 08-CV-03174-MEJ, 2016
WL 1055251, at *6 (quoting 124 Cong. Rec. 25,733, RIN, Dkt. No. 289-4 at 3).

9. To accomplish this goal, Congress enacted § 1693k which provides: “No
person may— (1) Condition the extension of credit to a consumer on such consumer’s
repayment by means of preauthorized electronic fund transfers.” 15 U.S.C. § 1693k.
“With this provision, Congress sought to protect consumers’ ability to choose their
payment method by prohibiting persons from conditioning the extension of credit on EFT

payments.” Kemply, 2016 WL 1055251, at *6; see also 124 Cong. Rec. 25,735 (“As with
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any technology, many consumers will choose not to change but to cling to their
traditional method of payment. [Section 1693k(1) is] designed to insure that consumers
have this right.”).

PARTIES

10.  Plaintiff, Mickey Thrasher, is a natural person who at all relevant times
resided in the State of Colorado, County of El Paso, and City of Colorado Springs.

11.  Mr. Thrasher is a “consumer” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1693a(6) and 12
C.F.R. § 205.2(e).

12.  Plaintiff, Kimberly Cyr, is a natural person who at all relevant times resided
in the State of Colorado, County of El Paso, and City of Colorado Springs.

13.  Ms. Cyr is a “consumer” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1693a(6), 12 C.F.R. §
205.2(e).

14.  Defendant, RMAB, is a company that is, upon information and belief, duly
licensed to conduct business within the state of Colorado, and with a principal office
located at 4912 Carrera Point, Colorado Springs, CO 80923.

MS. CYR’S TRANSACTION WITH RMAB

15.  On September 15, 2017, Ms. Cyr visited RMAB’s dealership to shop for a
vehicle.

16. Ms. Cyr selected a 2007 Saturn Aura, and agreed to purchase it from

RMAB for $11,291.38.
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17.  Ms. Cyr could not afford to pay cash for the vehicle, so she purchased it on
credit and executed a retail installment sales contract (“the Cyr Contract”) in favor of
RMAB.

18. A true and accurate copy of the Cyr Contract is attached to this complaint
as Exhibit A.

19. During the parties’ discussions regarding the purchase of the vehicle,
RMAB?’s representative advised Ms. Cyr that she would have to enroll in an automatic
payment plan (“the auto pay arrangement”) for her loan to be approved.

20. Based on RMAB’s representations, Ms. Cyr agreed to enroll in the auto pay
arrangement, and executed an electronic fund transfer authorization form

21. A true and accurate copy of the electronic fund transfer authorization is
attached hereto as Exhibit B.

22.  The electronic fund transfer authorization form authorized RMAB’s
assignee to transfer money from Ms. Cyr’s bank account to pay her monthly payments
under the Cyr Contract.

23.  Ms. Cyr’s bank account was established primarily for personal, family, and
household purposes and thus is an “account” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1693a(2) and 12
C.F.R. § 205.2(b)(1).

24.  The fund transfers allowed by the EFT Authorization are “electronic fund

transfers” as defined by 15 U.S.C. 8 1693a(7) and 12 C.F.R. § 205.3(b).
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25. The fund transfers allowed by EFT Authorization were to occur at a
substantially regular intervals and thus are “preauthorized electronic fund transfers” as
defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1693a(10) and 12 C.F.R. § 205.2(k).

MR. THRASHER’S TRANSACTION WITH RMAB

26.  On December 27, 2017, Mr. Thrasher visited RMAB’s dealership to shop
for a vehicle.

27.  Mr. Thrasher selected a 2003 Chrysler Town & Country, and agreed to
purchase it from RMAB for $7,366.91.

28.  Mr. Thrasher could not afford to pay cash for the vehicle, so he purchased it
on credit and executed a retail installment sales contract (“the Thrasher Contract”) in
favor of RMAB.

29. A true and accurate copy of the Thrasher Contract is attached to this
complaint as Exhibit C.

30. During the parties’ discussions regarding the purchase of the vehicle,
RMAB’s representative advised Mr. Thrasher that he would have to enroll in an
automatic payment plan (“the auto pay arrangement”) for his loan to be approved.

31. Based on RMAB’s representations, Mr. Thrasher agreed to enroll in the
auto pay arrangement, and executed an electronic fund transfer authorization form.

32. A true and accurate copy of the transfer authorization form is attached to

this complaint as Exhibit D.
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33.  The electronic fund transfer authorization form authorized RMAB’s
assignee to transfer money from Mr. Thrasher’s bank account to pay his monthly
payments under the Thrasher Contract.

34.  Mr. Thrasher’s bank account was established primarily for personal, family,
and household purposes and thus it is an “account” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1693a(2)
and 12 C.F.R. § 205.2(b)(1).

35. The fund transfers allowed by the auto pay arrangement are “electronic
fund transfers” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1693a(7) and 12 C.F.R. § 205.3(b).

36.  The fund transfers allowed by the auto pay arrangement were to occur at a
substantially regular intervals and thus are “preauthorized electronic fund transfers” as
defined by 15 U.S.C. 8 1693a(10) and 12 C.F.R. § 205.2(K).

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

37.  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege all factual allegations above.

38.  Upon information and belief, RMAB’s practice of conditioning credit upon
its customers’ repayment via preauthorized electronic fund transfers, is its standard
practice in dealing with consumers.

39. Upon information and belief, RMAB has engaged in its practice of
conditioning credit upon its customers’ repayment via preauthorized electronic fund
transfers, with respect to over forty (40) individuals in the state of Colorado in the year
prior to the filing of this matter.

40.  Plaintiffs brings this action on behalf of themselves and all others similarly

situated. Specifically, Plaintiffs seek to represent a class of individuals defined as:

6
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All persons that purchased a vehicle from RMAB on credit and agreed to

allow RMAB or its assignee to initiate preauthorized electronic fund

transfers from their bank accounts for the payments due under their loans,

within the twelve months preceding the filing of Plaintiffs’ class action
complaint.

41.  The proposed class specifically excludes the United States of America, the
State of Colorado, counsel for the parties, the presiding United States District Court
Judge, the Judges of the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit, and the
Justices of the United States Supreme Court, all officers and agents of RMAB, and all
persons related to within the third degree of consanguinity or affection to any of the
foregoing persons.

42. The class is averred to be so numerous that joinder of members is
impracticable.

43.  The exact number of class members is unknown to Plaintiffs at this time
and can be ascertained only through appropriate discovery.

44,  The class is ascertainable in that the names and addresses of all class
members can be identified in business records maintained by RMAB.

45.  There exists a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law
and fact involved that affect the parties to be represented. These common questions of
law and fact predominate over questions that may affect individual class members. Such
issues include, but are not limited to: (a) the existence of RMAB’s identical conduct

particular to the matters at issue; (b) RMAB’s violation of the EFTA,; (c) the availability

of statutory penalties; and (d) attorney’s fees and costs.
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46.  Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the class they seek to
represent.

47.  Plaintiffs’ claims and the class’s claims originate from the same conduct,
practice, and procedure on the part of RMAB. Thus, if brought and prosecuted
individually, the claims of each class member would require proof of the same material
and substantive facts.

48.  Plaintiffs possesses the same interests and have suffered the same injuries
as each class member. Plaintiffs assert identical claims and seek identical relief on behalf
of the unnamed class members.

49.  Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class and
have no interest adverse to or which directly and irrevocably conflict with the interests of
other class members.

50.  Plaintiffs are willing and prepared to serve this Court and the proposed
class.

51.  The interests of Plaintiffs are co-extensive with and not antagonistic to
those of the absent class members.

52.  Plaintiffs have retained the services of counsel who are experienced in
consumer protection claims, as well as complex class action litigation, will adequately
prosecute this action, and will assert, protect and otherwise represent Plaintiffs and all
absent class members.

53.  Class certification is appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(1)(A) and

23(b)(1)(B). The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the class
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would, as a practical matter, be dispositive of the interests of other members of the class
who are not parties to the action or could substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests.

54.  The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the class
would create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the class, which would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the
parties opposing the class. Such incompatible standards of conduct and varying
adjudications, on what would necessarily be the same essential facts, proof and legal
theories, would also create and allow the existence of inconsistent and incompatible
rights within the class.

55.  Class certification is appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) in that
RMAB has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the class, making
final declaratory or injunctive relief appropriate.

56.  Class certification is appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3) in that the
questions of law and fact that are common to members of the class predominate over any
questions affecting only individual members.

57.  Moreover, a class action is superior to other methods for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the controversies raised in this Complaint in that: (a) individual
claims by the class members will be impracticable as the costs of pursuit would far
exceed what any one plaintiff or class member has at stake; (b) as a result, very little
litigation has been commenced over the controversies alleged in this Complaint and

individual members are unlikely to have an interest in prosecuting and controlling

9



Case 1:18-cv-02342-KMT Document 1 Filed 09/13/18 USDC Colorado Page 10 of 12

separate individual actions; and (c) the concentration of litigation of these claims in one
forum will achieve efficiency and promote judicial economy.

COUNT I
VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. § 1693k

58.  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every factual allegation above.

59. The EFTA provides: “No person may— (1) Condition the extension of
credit to a consumer on such consumer’s repayment by means of preauthorized electronic
fund transfers.” 15 U.S.C. § 1693k.

60. Regulation E as promulgated by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
provides: “No financial institution or other person may condition an extension of credit
to a consumer on the consumer's repayment by preauthorized electronic fund
transfers . ...” 12 C.F.R. § 1005.10(e).

61. RMAB violated 15 U.S.C. 8 1693k and 12 C.F.R. § 1005.10(e) by
conditioning the extension of credit to Plaintiffs and the class members upon their
repayment by preauthorized electronic fund transfers.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:

a) Determining that this action is a proper class action, certifying Plaintiffs as
class representatives under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
and designating this Complaint the operable complaint for class purposes;

b) Adjudging that RMAB violated 15 U.S.C. § 1693k and Regulation E;

c) Enjoining RMAB from further violations of 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1693k and

Regulation E;

10
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d) Awarding Plaintiffs statutory damages, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 8§
1693m(a)(2)(A);

e) Awarding Plaintiffs, and the class they seek to represent, statutory damages
in such amount as the court may allow, without regard to a minimum
individual recovery, and not to exceed the lesser of $500,000 or 1 percent
of the net worth of the RMAB, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 8 1693m(a)(2)(B);

f) Awarding Plaintiffs, and the class they seek to represent, reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §
1693m(a)(3); and

g) Awarding other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

TRIAL BY JURY
23.  Plaintiffs are entitled to and hereby demand a trial by jury.
Dated: September 13, 2018
Respectfully submitted,
s/ Russell S. Thompson, IV
Russell S. Thompson, 1V
Thompson Consumer Law Group, PLLC
5235 E. Southern Ave., D106-618
Mesa, AZ 85206
602-388-8898

866-317-2674 facsimile
rthompson@ThompsonConsumerLaw.com

s/ Jose F. Gill

Jose F. Gill

Thompson Consumer Law Group, PLLC
5235 E. Southern Ave., D106-618

Mesa, AZ 85206

Telephone: (602) 388-8836

11
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Facsimile: (866) 317-2674
jgill@ThompsonConsumerLaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

12
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EXHIBIT “A”

EXHIBIT "A"
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= ‘Co-Buyer Name and Address

4912 CARRERA POI
COLORADO SPRING

‘our’ mean each Buyer above, jointly and severally. “Us"
cribed below for cash or credit. The cash price is shown
i Ve agreed to

dition and repair.

and "We" mean Creditor-Seller and Creditor-Seller's assignee. You
on page 2 as the “Cash _
buy the Vehicle from Us on credit for the Total Sale Price. You acknowledge delivery and acceptance of

Price”. The credit price is shown below as

You promise to pay Us all amounts due under this Retail Installment Contract (‘Contract’), including the Total Sale Pri
 with the payment schedule shown in the Truth in Lending Disclosures below. You conditions below (ing

 accordance with the pa also agree to the terms and con  below (includin
the Truth in Lending Disclosures) and on the subsequent pages of this Contract. The Annual Percentage Rate may be negotiable with Us."
' Year and Make Model and Body Style Color | Vehicle Identification Number | Odometer Reading
Used 2007 Saturn Aura 4D Sedan BLUE 115,760
| | :
TRUTH IN LENDING DISCLOSURES

ANNUAL FINANCE Amount Total of Total Sale Price

PERCENTAGE CHARGE Financed Payments The total cost of Your

RATE The dollar amount The amount of credit

The amount You will
have paid after You
have made all pay-

ments as scheduled.

purchase on credit,
including Your
down payment of

$.1,250.00
$ 15,511 .90

the credit will cost
You.

$4,219.72

provided to You or on
Your behalf.

is
$10,041.38

$14,261.10

Payment Schedule: Your payment schedule will be:
No. of Payments

Amount of Payments —| When Payments Are Due

$
$

42 339055

Monthly, beginning October 15 5 20T

Security: You are giving a security interest in the goods or Vehicle being purchased.
Late Charge: If a payment is more than 10 days late, You will be charged $15.

Prepayment: If You pay early, You may be entitled to a refund of part of the Finance Charge.
. : BiEase fgad thisjeomtract for W agditigriati 'm" thonpagmetityg :
b s '::'____ “-. "_____ l Ly _J "<
PROPERTY INSURANCE: You must insure the Vehicle securing this Contract. YOU MAY PURCHASE OR PROVIDE THE INSURANCE THROUGH
ANYONE YOU CHOOSE WHO

IS REASONABLE ACCEPTABLE TO US, as more fully described on page 3.

THIS CONTRACT DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE, AND SAID BUYER ALSO STATES
THAT HE OR SHE HAS/ K (STRIKE WORDS NOT APPLICABLE) IN EFFECT AN AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
_?ﬁlu%\én?RaEéﬂﬂED IN SECTION 42-27-103(2), COLORADO REVISED STATUES, ON THE MOTOR VEHICLE SOLD BY
S 71

ARBITRATION: This Contract contains an Arbitration Clause that states You and We ma
arbitration and not b{ court action. See the Arbitration Clause on Page 5 of this Contract for t%
&

agreement to arbitrate. By initialing below, you confirm that you have read, understand and ag
the Arbitration Clause. P

E}v Buyer's Initials Buyer's Initials /|

elect to resolve an dispute by
e full terms and congitionﬁl:;f?ti?gﬁ

NOTICE: ANY HOLDER OF THIS CONSUMER CREDIT CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO ALL CLAIMS AND DEFENSES 2
WHICH THE DEBTOR COULD ASSERT AGAINST THE SELLER OF GOODS OR SERVICES OBTAINED PURSUANT

R CSroRS HEREOF. RECOVERY HEREUNDER BY THE DEBTOR SHALL 1o Excjsjsg_ —rt

AMOUNTS PAID BY THE DEBTOR HEREUNDER,

USED CAR BUYERS GUIDE. THE INFORMATION YOU SEE ON THE WINDOW FORM FOR THIS VEHIC
INFORMATION ON THE WINDOW FORM OVERRIDES

ontra LE IS PART OF THIS CC
ANY CONTRARY PROVISIONS IN THE CONTRACT OF SALEQF F THIS
La informacién que ve en el formulario de la ventanilla para este vehic W‘_

ite contrato. La informacién del formulario de la ventanilla deja sin efecto toda disposicion en oo e ic

- TERMS AND CONDITIONS: THE ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS, INCLUDING THE /
ON THE ADDITIONAL PAGES OF THIS CONTRACT ARE A PART OF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE I

-

i

PAGE 10f5

et

-y BRI

ij



...........

r Payoff Made by Seller $ N/A (D)
2 number, Insert “0” in line 3(E) and itemize difference in 5(E) below) (C-D)  $ N/A (E) g
; Gross Trade-In........... $ N/A (F) e
a
Payoff Made by Seller $ N/A_(G) ‘
; . (if negative number, Insert “0” in line 3(H) and itemize difference in 5(K) below) (F-G)  $ N/A (H)
[EERE MaTURCMIers REDAte ... $ N/A (1) .
Il i Total Down Payment .....................cccoccoooo.... (A+B+E+H+]) $_
| 4. Unpaid Balance of Cash Price (1+ 2 less 3)................ : $
A

. Other Charges Including Amounts Paid to Others on Your Behalf
*(NOTICE: A portion of these charges may be paid to or retained by Us.)

A. *Cost of Required Physical Damage Insurance Paid to Insurance Company i D N/A_.{A)
B. *Cost of Optional Extended Warranty or Service Contract Paid to the Company named below $___ N/A (B)
C. Cost of Fees Paid to Public Officials for Perfecting, Releasing or Satisfying a Security Interest $ N/A (C)
D. Cost of Fees Paid to Public Officials for Certificate of Title. License and Registration ........... $ _ 32.15 (D) '|
Other Charges (Seller must identify who will receive payment and describe purpose) 11
E to N/A for lien or lease payoff ............coocvevioicsvisesennrenn. $ N/A (E) 1
B0 1= 0 Bivete i fied Services, Inc. forOptional GAP Protoction ... S $ 300.00 (Fy !
G. *to LHE SELLER for ROCKY MOUNTAIN AUTO BROKERS INC ¢ 699.00 g
H. o N/A for N/ A $ N/A (H)
L *o N/A for N/A $ N/A 0
J. toN/A for N/ A s N/A ()
K to N/A for lien or lease payoff ......c...oinnianiinaas $___  N/A g
Total of Other Charges and Amounts Paid to Others on YOur BeNalf............c..ccowwimmininniinmssimmmesisics s S b 031 15 (5
B PERAIIEINGNCE CHAIGE ......coo-vcoreommresesnrssiascsnsssssssisessasasesssessasnessessesssmmsis smtes o $____1*1_€3 .
. u Bfahce P+ 5fess Pr.. B B T .hl NN . §41n38 (7)
; | = | Y =
% WARRANTY OR VICE CON T: Aittough Y re'na'equ ¥'to pureMase an Bptio dWarrarttyer]
service contract as a condition of purchasing this Vehicle on credit, by signing below You are indicating that You voluntarily elect to b |
optional extended warranty or service contract covering the repair of certain major mechanical breakdowns of the Vehicle and related expe L
Refer to the optional extended warranty or service contract for details about coverage and duration.

Price$ N/A Term: N/A Company: N/A

***x*NOT PURCHASED - DO NOT SIGN****
Buyer's Signature Date Buyer's Signature Date

: ional Guaranteed Auto Protection (GAP) is not required to obtain credit. GAP protection will nc
;t?r?l\d';rptﬁg%%ﬁgé%"un?epsg%ou siun for it below and agree to éa the additional cost shown below and on Line 5F of the ITEM
AMOUNT FINANCED. You may obtain optional GAP protection from a person of Your choice that is authorized to sell such co
‘acceptable to Us. The GAP contract issued by the provider of the protection will describe the terms and conditions of covera
If You want GAP protection, sign below.

¢§ 300.00 o 42 Mos. Provider: _Western Diversified S

Rimberley REYE _, vusrd  09/15/2017
Date Buyer's Signature

ER: 1. Do not sign this Contract in blank. 2. You are entitled to 1 true copy
protect Your !gg'al rights. _
ori ,tl._cnow{edge.tf_:at You have received a

Lasc 2




u promise to make all
of this Contract. You

payments when due. If You fail to make a payment when it is due, You agree to pa
agree that We do not waive any of our rights b¥ accepting one or more iategbayﬁ'iéﬂfsi

k Charge. You agree to Pay Us a bad check charge of $25 (or such other amount permitted by applicable law) fo
given by You to 33 that is returned by Your bank because of(msufﬁcient funds or beg:use Your{argl?acmun? /

rship and Risk of Loss. You promise to pay Us all You owe under this Contract even if the Vehicle is damaged, destroyed o
ur Other Promises to Us. You promise that:

You will not remove the Vehicle from the United States or Canada.

You will not sell, rent, lease or otherwise transfer any interest in the Vehicle or this Contract without our written permission.
You will not expose the Vehicle to misuse or confiscation.

You will not permit any other lien or securi

i ! 1 keep it in good condition and repair. R
You will not use the Vehicle in a trade or business without our written consent. o
You will not use the Vehicle unlawfully or abandon it. If a governmental agency impounds the Vehicle, You will notify Us immediately and I
regam_f)ossessmn of the Vehicle. We may regain possession of the Vehicle and treat it as a default. e
You will pay all taxes, assessments, rentals, charges, and other fees imposed on the Vehicle when they are due. If We pay any repair bills,
storage bills, taxes, fines, fees, or other charges on the Vehicle, You agree to repay the amount to Us.
- You will permit Us to inspect the Vehicle at any reasonable time. 48
- Youwill promptly sign, or cause others to sign, and give Us any documents We reasonably request to perfect our security interest. -
- You have not made and will not make an untrue, misleading or incomplete statement in a credit application, this Contract or any information
erovided in connection with this Contract. - : : : ) '
ou will promptly provide Us with any additional personal or financial information concerning You or any information about the Vehicle that We may
reasonably reguest from time to time.

= You will immediately notify Us if You change Your name or address.

ito

=

Prepayment. You have the right to prepay Your account balance early without a penalty. If You prepay in full, You ma%be entitled to a refund credit

of part of the pre-computed finance charge. This credit will be calculated in accordance with the actuarial method. We will apply the credit to the
amount You owe Us or if You paid Us more than the amount ow

ed to Us under this Contract, We will refund it to You. A minimum finance charge
of $25 may be charged. We will not credit or refund amounts less than $1.00.

If You prepay only a portion of the balance remaining under this Contract, We will apply the prepayment to Your account balance, however a
prepayment will not excuse any later scheduled payments. You must stil

| make all scheduled payments on time until Your ob!i?ation under this
ontract is paid in full. If You make a partial prepayment Your last payment or payments may be less than the scheduled amount due. :
gl oo O L HEINICS ORTINAL.
Ny 2 licyML?r tis ac st Bpplov: tyPe lan Afe

0 f inst Ca i - ibis
he Vehicle, then We mie(% buy it for You. If

V e . | 4
i ical damage insurance which covers both the interest of You and Us in t
Contract, if You do not have physi g S en e

We do not buy physical dam:ge insurance which covers both interests in the Vehicle, We may, if We decide, buy i
interest, to the extent permitted by law.

igation to buy any insurance, but may do so if We desire, If We buy either of these coverages, We will let You know
‘iﬁ: gﬁi liljr':gecrhg?g:b\lf%ﬁumust pa;{ Thsé amount You must pay will be the premium for the insurance and a fin

. nance charge at the Annual Perc
Rate shown on this Contract. You agree to pay the amount and finance charge in equal installments along with the payments shown on the
Schedule. I

icle i , You agree that We can use any insurance settlement either to repair the Vehicle or apply to Your accour
E;ha _@ge"lgd?salc%gg?a :aq:gce, the ?nsuranoe settlement proceeds that do not pay Your obligation in full under this Contract will t
partial payment.

Ty or Service Contracts. This Contract may contain charges for optional insurance, mainte
, opﬂwm@wﬂ'lg:#gg?ﬁ,“ga&gﬁggg ﬁepossessed. You agree that We may claim benefits under these contracts and termin
of unearned charges.

ice or Other Contract Charges Returned to Us.
mﬁ%g:taihsaegc;?cfa:ce with the Prepayment section of this Contra

If any charge for requirec
ct or used to buy simila
: nd on optional insurance, maintenance, service, warranty or other contracts obtained g
h the Prepayment section of this Contract
ion of ntract. You will be in default if:
et this Contract when it is due.
p You made in this Contract.
p or insolvency is started by You or




c%g activation 'wh@bh
ation on the Device.

Vehicle. If You default, We may take (repossess) the Vehicle from You after We give You any notice th
e, We can enter Your property, or the property where the Veehicle is stored, so long as it is done peaceful
ories, equipment or replacements will remain with the Vehicle. You hereby acknowledge and agree that any
thin the Vehicle may be removed and held without liability to Us or our agent. It is Your responsibility to promptly:

ke arrangements for the return of Your personal property. You are responsibie for
on.

'?.the Vehicle Back After Redpossession. If We refpossess the Vehicle, You have the right to pay to get it back (redeem) at any tin
; se di he Vehicle i

i % le?se. license or otherwi spose of any or all of t n its present condition or following any commercially reasonable prepara
) ﬁa 'fp ng'

‘Sale of the Repossessed Vehicle. Any notice that is required to be given to You of an intended sale or transfer of the Vehicle will be mailed‘tgé
Your last known address, as reflected in our records, in a reasonable period before the date of the intended sale or transfer (or such other period
of time as is required by law). If the Vehicle is sold, We will use the net proceeds of the sale to pay all or part of Your debt.

The net proceeds of the sale will be figured this way: Any charges for taking, holding, preparing for sale, and selling the Vehicle, and any attorney
fees and court costs, if permitted by law, will be subtracted from the selling price.

If You owe Us less than the net proceeds of sale. We will pay You the difference, unless We are required to pag_ it to someone else. For example,
may be required to pay a lender who has given You a loan and has also taken a security interest in the Vehicle.

If You owe more than the net proceeds of sale, You will pay Us the difference between the net Eroceeds of sale and what You owe when We ask for

it, unless the law provides otherwise. If You do not pay this amount when asked, You may also be charged interest at the highest lawful rate until You
do pay all You owe to Us.

Collection Costs. If We hire an attorney to collect what You owe and the attorney is not our salaried employee, You will pay the attorney’s fee not
1o exceed 15% of the amount due and payable under the Contract, and any court costs as permitted by law.

Delay in Enforcing Rights and Changes of this Contract. We can delay or refrain from enforcing any of our rights under this Contract without losing
them. For example, We can extend the time for making some payments without extending others. Any change in the terms of this Contract must be in
writing and signed by Us. No oral changes are binding. If any part of this Contract is not valid, all other parts will remain enforceable.

WARRANTIES SELLER DISCLAIMS. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THE SELLER IS NOT OFFERING ANY WARRANTIES AND THAT THERE ARE
D

THAT MAY BE PROVIDED BY THE VEHICLE MANUFACTURER.

Interest After Maturity. You further agree to ay interest at the Annual Percentaﬁg Rate stated on page 1 of this Contract or at the highest rate
permitted by applicable law, on any amounts that remain uns\?ud after maturity of this Contract, For the purposes of this provision, maturity means
the earlier of the date Your final payment is due or the date \We accelerate the Contract. ;

Judgment Rate. Interest on any judgment awarded on this Contract will be at the Annual Percentage Rate stated on page 1 i tor.
the I%ghest rate permitted by applica%!e law. . Page 1 of this Contract orat

Governing Law. The terms of this Contract are

governed by law of the state of the Seller's address shown on e 1 i € e
the extent preempted by applicable federal law. page 1 of this Contract, except to ;

ASSIGNMENT
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Seller hereby assigns and transfers all Seller's ri ht, title and interest in to thi and ir
to the Vehicle described herein, to CREYD!T ACCEPTANCE CORPQRATIORI (‘IAssignee"). its succggsdorg terl.lris('i gggité:g 'p g
and in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the existing dealer agreement between Seller and Assig
the date hereof. Seller gives Assignee full power, either in Assignee’s name or in Seller's name. to take all actions whi

d have taken under this Contract. In order to induce Assignee to accept assi nment of this Contract Seller r
nts to Assignee as set forth in the existing dealer agreemgent. . £ ¢ niract, Ssler

F ASSIGNMENT: The Seller has assigned this Contract to Credit A rpora
s men ore st o B o Gl T e el s
)ayments to: s T ] [
Al ,}’IIGAN 48034-8339, 1-(800)-634-1506. TWELY

P




et
thot auon, Lredit Acceptance Corporation) or
tion with the origination, servicing and ior ou

Js. “You" and “Your" means each Buyer gtl]?ggoanbgzgmoun

If You don’t want this Arbitration Clause to apply, Y by maili
ng."éﬁeff:c trﬁ;ee{i;lﬂnisn:iﬁ%% tt’hgt %?Fgrlbes the c%% z cto gn?%l{:]ﬁgtmua?‘g:“; eje
20 s n i Sonec thg e l:)yers, co-buyers and cosI?ners and the envelo

: f this Contract. If You t t e
% '!SIES Contract or the status of Your Contract. If You don’t rejet:?a his Al:ibsitﬁart?::nt:‘-nagg:lse'?

" is any controversy or claim between You and Us arising out of or in a i includi
C : ny way rel -
“defau fgmt:il_?r \t,hag_(iontrgct, the collection of amounts due _unqgr this Contract, the gurgh%aigg. tgagisdgﬁ\?gg?téé?ﬂg? lqu
ing for et et |c1e_or its financing, or any product or service included in this Contract. “Dispute” shall have the broadest meanin
}les u ﬁs t\?v?t% retzaf: é;alms‘ and claims based on tort, violations of laws, statutes, ordinances or regulations or any other legal of
e (o] S [n ing the foregoing, “Dispute” does not include agy individual action brought b;egou in small claims court or Y
uivalen cox\:(rt, un! e?s such action is transferred, removed or appealed to a different court, “Dispute” does not include any repos:
hicle upon Your t|j1e ault and any exercise of the power of sale of the Vehicle under this Contract or any individual action by You to pr
dbg; %sg??ngl% gucﬁs ;Strgsec; 'cﬁﬁ tgggvgﬁd?gcheg}g:_\égggll_tactlon does not involve ?trequest for monetary relief of any kind. In add_iﬁg_n
does r € : llity, coverage
| TR anaut the validity, y ge or scope of this Arbitration Clause or any part thereof (including

tatio . n the sixth paragraph of this Arbitration Clause, the last sentence of the seventh paragraph o
Arbitration Clause and/or this sentence); all such disputes aregfor a court and not an arbitrator to decide. However, any dispute%r arggug*le
concerns the validity or enforceability of the Contract as a whole is for the arbitrator, not a court, to decide.

If a Dispute arises, the complaininguJa_rty shall give the other party a written Dispute Notice and a reasonable opportunity, not less than 30 days, to
resolve the Dispute. Any Dispute Notice to You will be sent in writing to the address on this Contract (or any updated address You subsequently
g%vades éc:l }g\%}é! cf\r'%Dlsputez otice to Us must be sent by mail to: Credit Acceptance, Attn: Corporate Le%?l, 25505 West Twelve Mile Road, Suite

chigan 48034-8339 (or any updated address We subsequently provide to You). Any Dispute Notice You send must give Your
Account Number, telephone number and address. Any Dispute Notice must explain the nature of the Dispute and the relief that is demanded.
The complaining party must reasonably cooperate in providing any information agout the Dispute that the other party reasonably requests.

Either You or We may require any Dispute to be arbitrated and may do so before or after a lawsuit has been started over the Dispute or with

respect to other Disputes or counterclaims brought later in the lawsuit. If You or We elect to arbitrate a Dispute, this Arbitration Clause applies. A

Dispute shall be fully resolved by binding arbitration. Judgment on the arbitration award may be entered in any court with jurisdiction. All statutes

of limitation that otherwise would apply to an action brought in court will apply in arbitration. The arbitrator is authorized to award all remedies

Eerrmtted by the substantive law that would apply if the action were pending in court, including, without limitation, punitive damages (which shall
e governed by the Constitutional standards employed by the courts) and attorneys' fees and costs.

If You or We elect to arbitrate a Dispute, neither You nor We will have the right to pursue that Dis,:»ute in court or have a jury resolve that dispute.
In addition, if You or We elect to arbitrate a Dispute, (a) neither You nor We may participate in a class action in court or in a class-wide arbitration,
either as a plaintiff, defendant or class member; (b) neither You nor We mag acf as a private attorney general in court or in arbitration; (c) Dlslputes
brought by or against You may not be joined or consolidated with DjsFutes rought by or against any other person; and (d) the arbitrator shall have
no power or au%hority to conduct a class-wide arbitration, private attorney general arbitration or joined or consolidated arbitration (this sentence
including subparts a through d hereof is referred to in this Arbitration Clause as the “Class Action Waiver’). In the event there is an agreement
A I :

o emRilrs a digpute icts s . the agr is eyeenje (o] =3 = e jimgy orppfter
thlis Arb @m S e t s Arl idh Cl all cordrol @ i etween @ I [ l
NOWIthstding the foregoind'=VVe retain SS®ES t hicte UP8n Youl defatitand (0=€xeftis V' e sdte” under™t
Contract. If any provision of this Arbitration Clause other than the Class Action Waiver is invalid or unenforceable under the Federal Arbitration
Act or any other applicable law, the invalid or unenforceable provision shall be inapplicable and deemed omitted, but shall not invalidate the rest
of this Arbitration &guse, and shall not diminish the parties obl;gg?ation to arbitrate Disputes subject to this Arbitration Clause. In the event that the

Class Action Waiver is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, then, subject to the right to appeal such a ruling, this entire Arbitration Clause
(except for this sentence) shall be null and void.

Whoever first elects arbitration may choose to arbitrate under the rules and procedures of either JAMS or the American Arbitration Association;
however in the event of a conflict between these rules and procedures and the provisions of this Arbitration Clause, You and We agree that
this Arbitration Clause governs for that specific conflict. You may obtain the rules and procedures, information on fees and costs (including
waiver of the fees), and other materials, and may file a claim by contacting the organization of Your choice. The addresses and websites of
organizations are: JAMS, 1920 Main Street, Suite 300, Irvine, CA 92614, www.jamsadr.com | and American Arbitration Association, 335 Madi
Avenue, Floor 10, New York, New York 10017-4605, www. adr,ai?, If neither JAMS nor the American Arbitration Association is able or willing
serve, and You and We can't otherwise agree on a substitute administrator or arbitrator, then a court with appropriate jurisdiction shall i
an arbitrator. We will consider any good faith request You make to Us to pa¥ the administrator's or arbitrator's filing, administrative, hearir
or other fees if You cannot obtain a waiver of such fees from the administrator and We will not seek or accept reimbursement of any such
We will bear the expense of our attorneys, experts and witnesses, except where applicable law and this Contract allow Us to recover attc
fees and/or court costs in a collection action We bring. You will bear the exypens.e of Your attorneys, experts and witnesses if We
an arbitration. However, in an arbitration You commence, We will pay Your fees if You !Jrevan or if We must bear such fees il
Arbitration Clause to be enforced. Also, We will bear any fees if apdpltca le law requires Us to. The arbitrator may decide that an in-p
is unnecessary and that he or she can resolve the DISEUle based on the papers submitted by You or Us and/or through a tele
 However, any arbitration hearing that You attend will take place at a location that is reasonably convenient to You. Notice of th
location shall be provided to You and Us under the rules and procedures of the arbitration organization selected.

' “s decision is final and binding, except for any right of appeal provided by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U
arbitraﬂtroﬂr;g amount of the Dispute exc%eds $50,000 or involves a reguest for injunctive or declaratory relief that
- benefit to either party exceeding $50,000, any party can afpeal e award to a three-arbitrator panel admin
| onsider any aspect of the initial award requested by the appealing party. The decision of th
itration Clause to “the arbitrator” shall mean the panel of arbitrators if an appeal of th

eal will be borne in accordance with the section of this Arbitration Clause that des
ingle arbitrator.

L
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AUTHORIZATION FOR ELECTRONIC RECURRING PAYM et

» entitled Debit Information. 1 also authorize Billing Company and Credit Acce
lhe. dates E)l‘ the debits: and the bank and bank accounts from which the debits will be taken provided I give Bil
rporation notice by telephone, fax or in writing. (See Contact Information Below)

frequency of the debits:
Credit Acceptance Co

I direct Billing Company to deduct from the bank account the Periodic Payment payable to Credit Acceptance Corporation and to transmit |
Payment to Credit Acceptance. This Authoriz

ation shall remain in full force and effect until Billing Company or Credit Acceptance has reoei\fgd‘not -
from me by telephone, fax, or in writing, of its termination in such time and in such manner as to afford Billing Company reasonable opportunity to a
(See Contact Information Below). This Authorization may be suspended by Billing Company or Credit Acceptance without notification to me for'
dictated by operation o

f law, rule, regulation, payment in full of the underlying obligation; or for risk management purposes. I understand that this re
electronic debit program enrollment is voluntary and is not required as a condition to the extension of credit.

(A) CUSTOMER DATA

(D) CREDITOR INFORMATION 4
KIMBERLEY R CYR Company to be Paid: Credit Acceptance Corporation
1405 E PARKWAY DR Collector Code: CAPS
COLORADO SPRINGS, CO 80905 Please apply my payments to account #J-BSSI
| !
.' (B) BANK ACCOUNT HOLDER (E) DEBIT INFORMATION
(Complete if different from above) Monthly Payment Amount: $ 339.55
KIMBERLEY R CYR Periodic Payment: $ 339 .55
Please debit the bank account the following Periodic Payment amount:
1405 E PARKWAY DR $.339.55 once a month on 15th

COLORADO SPRINGS, CO 80905

CQORY.QF ELECTRONIC.ORIGINAL

(Please also attach a voided check)

Due Date. Form must be received by 10/15/2017
to have the account activated and started on time.

in order |

Name of Bank: _Ent CU

After activation, if you need to make changes to your information, you

must call a minimum of two (2) business days prior to your debit date.
Bank Routing Number (9 Digits): _-‘ For weekly and biweekly payment frequencies, if the calendar month has

an additional pay period, we will make an additional debit from the Bank

Account.
Bank Account Number: _

This Account is: XChecking (or)  Savings (or) Money Market

agned By.
lﬁ__.j.ag&gﬁemj DATE: _09/15/2017

Signature of Bank Account Holder

Henderson Servicing Center & Training Facility
C/O Customer Service

Contact Information 2460 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 110
‘To enroll, change or cancel this Authorization, or Henderson, NV 89074
if you have questions, please contact us at Facsimile Number: 866-610-9984

Customer Service: $88-857-7377
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RETAIL INSTALLMENT CONTRACT

rccount # 726 LOT # SK9

Buyer Name and Address Co-Buyer Name and Address Creditor-Seller Name and Addross
MICKEY THRASHER N/A ROCKY MOUNTAIN AUTO BROKERS
6120 CHAMPLIN DR INC

Apt. # 212 4912 CARRERA POINT
FOUNTAIN, CO 80817 COLORADO SPRINGS, CO 80923

“You® and “Your” mean each Buyer above, jointly and severally. “Us” and "We" mean Creditor-Seller and Creditor-Seller’s assignee. You may buy the
Vehicle described below for cash or credit. The cash price js shown on page 2 as the “Cash Price”. The credit price is shown befow as “Total Sale
Price”. You have agreed to buy the Vehicle from Us on credit for the Total Sale Price. You acknowledge delivery and acceptance of the Vehicle in
goodt condition and repair. You promise to pay Us all amounts due urder this Retail Installment Contract {*Cantract”), including the Total Sale Price, in
accordance with the payment schedule shown in the Truth in Lending Disclosures below. You also agree to the terms and conditions below (including
the Truth in Lending Disclosures) and on the subsequent pages of this Contract. The Annual Percentage Rate may be negotiable with Us.

Year and Make Madel and Body Style Golor Vehicle ldentification Number | Odometer Reading

Used 2003 Chrysler | Town & Country Wagon LWB - | SILVER _ 145,084

_TRUTHIN LENDING DISCLOSURES

LANNUAL  ]FINANCE § Amount Total of Total Sale Price
L PERCENTAGE CHARGE 4 Financed Payments The total cost of Your
LRATE The dollar amount i The amount of credit The amount You will purchase on credit,
E The cost of Your the credit will cost & provided to You or on have paid after You including Your
@ credit as a yearly You. & Your behalf. have made all pay- down payment of
i ate, : menis as scheduled. 800.00 .
20.99 % {$1,728.30 e L
. _ — L $8,295.21 $9,095.21
Payment Schedule: Your payment schedule will be;
No. of Payments Armpunt of Payments When Payments Are Due
$
$
27 $ 307.23 Monthly, beginning January 27, 2018

Security: You are giving a securily interest in the goods or Vehicle being purchased.
Late Charge: if a payment is more than 10 days late, You will be charged $15.
£ i You pay early, You may be entitled o a refund of part of the Finance Charge.

PROPERTY INSURANCE: Yeu must insure the Vehicle securing this Contract. YOU MAY PURCHASE OR PROVIDE THE INSURANGE THROUGH
ANYONE YOU CHOOSE WHO IS REASONABLE ACCEPTABLE TO US, as more fully described on page 3.

THIS CONTRACT DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE, AND SAID BUYER ALSCO STATES
THAT HE OR SHE HAS/TIRRRXXOMXX (5 TRIKE WORDS NOT APPLICABLE) IN EFFECT AN AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
POLICY AS DEFINED IN SECTION 42-27-103(2), COLORADQ REVISED STATUES, ON THE MOTOR VEHICLE SOLD BY
THIS CONTRACT. ' :

ARBITRATION: This Contract contains an Arbitration Clause that states You and We may elect to resolve any dispute by
arbitration and not by court action. See the Arbitration Clause on Page 5 of this Contract for the full terms and conditions of the
ﬁqgre?fi&entt‘to aéki)l‘zrza . By initialing below, you confirm that you have read, undersiand and agree to the terms and canditions in

@ Arbitration Clause.

agn L W .
> Buyer's Initials lj Buyer's Initials

NOTICE: ANY HOLDER OF THIS CONSUMER CREDIT CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TC ALL CLAIMS AND DEFENSES
WHICH THE DEBTOR COULD ASSERT AGAINST THE SELLER OF GOODS OR SERVICES OBTAINED PURSUANT
HERETO OR WITH THE PROCEEDS HEREOF, RECOVERY HEREUNDER BY THE DERTOR SHALL NOT EXCEED
AMOUNTS PAID BY THE DEBTOR HEREUNDER.

USED CAR BUYERS GUIDE. THE INFORMATION YOU SEE ON THE WINDOW FORM FOR THIS VEHICLE IS PART OF THIS COMTRACT.
INFORMATION ON THE WINDOW FORM OVERRIDES ANY CONTRARY PROVISIONS IN THE CONTRACT OF SALE.

Guia para compradores de vehiculos usados, La infermacion que ve en el Tormulario de la ventanilla para este vehiculo forma parte del
presente contraio. La informacién del formulario de la ventaniiia deja sin efecto toda disposicion en contrario contenida en el contrato
de venta.

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: THE ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS, INCLUDING THE ARBITRATION CLAUSE SET
FORTH ON THE ADDITIONAL PAGES OF THIS CONTRACT ARE A PART OF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY
REFERENCE.

Inits:
COLORADO CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION (11-16) E‘%} Buyer's initials l__IE:
® 2012-2016 Credit Acceptance Corporation, PAGE 1 0of 5

Al Rights Reserved.

. o o ) _ ‘ ~ Buyer's Initials
The otiginal retail instaliment contract is assigned to Credit Acceptance Carporaiion.
This copy was created on 12/27/2017
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ITEMIZATION OF AMOUNT FINANCED

1. Cash Price (including accessories and Improvemants 10 the VENIEIE).....o.cvi v oeee oo oo oees s sees e e s oo $...6,100.00 9y
2. SAIES TAX ..ottt st s B D35 16 (D)
3. Down-Payment Calculation: Cash Down Payment ...
Deferred Down Payment
Trade-in Description: Gross Trade-in.......... $
Make: N/A
Model: N/A Payoff Made by Seller $ ;
Net Tradedn {f negative numbser, nsert “0” in fine 3{E) and ftemize difference in 5(E) helow} (C-D)  $_ _N/A(E)
Trade-In Description: Gross Trade-in.......... $_._.‘._._......._.__._._...__.I.EI_/__A___(F}
Make: N/A
Model: N/A Payoff Made by Seller $ N/A (G
Net Trade-n (f negative number, insert “0” in fine 3(H) and itemize difference in 50 below) (F-GY  $____ N/A(H)
Other: Manufacturers ReDate ... e $ o U N/AM
Total Down Payment ..., (A+B+E+H4Y . 800.00 (3y
4, Unpaid Balance of Cash PrICE (14 21858 BY... oo orsieeeeoses s oot sesssesiesss e sesse st ee oo es s eorr e $_..5:835.76 (4)

5. Other Charges ncluding Amounis Paid to Others on Your Behalf:
*(NOTICE: A porticn of these charges may be paid to or retained by Us)

A, *Cost of Required Physical Damage insurance Pald to insurance Company ......ccoeeeevevevenen. $_.,._4._..WMW§.{:7'}W (A)
B. *Cast of Optional Extended Warranty or Seivice Contract Paid to the Company named below $.o..... m%(ﬁ)
C.  Cost of Fees Paid to Public Officials for Perfecting, Releasing or Satisfying a Security Interest $wmmmmﬂﬂ(0)
D. Cost of Fees Paid to Public Officials for Certificate of Title, License and Registration ............ B __-_.m-.w.ig;}éw(D)
Gther Gharges (Seller must identify who will receive payment and describe purpose)
E. to N/A for lien or 1ease PAYOT cocooorerorooeooeooooeo $oN/A
F. v N/A for Optional GAP PIOECHON ......oocoove e, 5. N/A
G *goHBE SELLER for Yocky mountain auto brokers 8 6995.00 (@)
H, o N/A for N/ A $ N/B gy
Lo N/A for N/A 5 N/A )
4 o N/A . for N/A $ N/A )
K. to N/A forlien orlease PAaYoll .. $___._____M_(K)
Total of Other Charges and Amournts Paid to Others on Your Behalf.. ... v e $W_7§}*;},*5m(5)
6. Less Prepaid Finance Charge N/A (B)
. 55m9%(7)

W %y UW Wse Wﬁgess
% o i - i : )

TONAT EXTENDED WARIANTY OR'SERVICE BENTRACT: Altrbug réno pulsisd an Botiorsrekibnfedlrral

service confract as a condition of purchasing this Vehicle on credit, by signing below You are indicating that You voluntarily elect to buy an

optional extended warranty or service contract covering the repair of certain major mechanical breakdowns of the Vehicle and related expenses.
Refer to the optional exdendsd warranty or service contract for detfails about coverage and duration.

Price $ N/A Term: N/A _ Company. N/A
****NOT PURCHASED - DO NOT SIGN****
Buyer's Signature Date Buyer's Signature Date

GAP PROTECTION: Optional Guarantesd Auto Protection (GAP) is not required to aobtain credit, GAP protection will not be provided
under this Contract urless You sign for it below and agree to pay the additional cost shown below and on Line 5F of the [TEMIZATION OF
AMOUNT FINANCED. You msy obtain optional GAP protection from a persaon of Your choeice that is authorized to sell such coverage and is
acceplable tn Us. The GAP contract issued by the provider of the protection will describe the terms and conditions of coverage in further detail.
If You want GAP protection, sign balow.

Cost: & N/R Tarm: N/A Provider: N/A
** ¥ *NOT PURCHASED -~ DO NOT SIGN****
Buyer's Signature [ate Buyer's Sighature Date

NOTICE TO BUYER: 1. Do not sign this Contract in blank, 2. You are entitled to 1 true copy of the Contract You sign withoui
charge. Kesp it to protect Your legal rights.

You agree to the ferms of this Confract and acknowledge that You have recefved a copy of this Contract with all blanks fitled
in and that You have read it and understand it

Zayre
: Buyer's Signature: x Mecdey Throdber | . ovuaonen Buyer's Signature: x
SellerROCKY MOUNTAIN AUTO BROKERS INC By: [ Bocky Rodniguey ] TYitie: AGENT
This Contract is signed by the Seiler and Buyer(s) hereto this 27th  dayof_ December L2017

COLORADO CREDIT AGCEPTANGE GORPORATION (11-16) e
® 2012-2016 Credit Acceptance CGorporation. PAGE 2 of b

All Rights Reserved. The original retaif instaliment contract is assigned to Credit Acceptance Caorporation,

This copy was created on 12272017
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ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Security Interest, You give Us a security interestin: 1). The Vehicle and all parts or goods installed in it; 2[). All maney or goods received (proceeds)
for the Vehicle; 3). All insurance, maintenance, service or other contracts We inance for You; and 4). All proceeds from insurance, maintenance,
service or other contracts We finance for You (this includes any refunds of premiums). This secures payment of all You owe on this Contract and
in any transfer, renewal, extension or assignment of this Contract. } also secures Your other agreements in this Contract. You agree 1o have the
certificate of title show our security interest {lisn) in the Vehicle,

Late Charge. You promise to make all payments when due. If You fail to make a payment when it is dus, You agree to pay Us a iale charge as
stated on page 1 of this Confract. You agrée that We do not waive any of our rights by accepting one or more (ate payments from You.

Bad Check Charge. You agree to pay Us a bad check charge of $25 for such other amount permitied by apﬁlicable law) for any check or like
instrument given by You to Us that is returned by Your bank because of insufficient funds or because Your bank account was ciosed.

Ownership and Risk of Loss. You promise to pay Us all You owe under this Coniract even if the Vehicle is damaged, destroyed or missing.

Your Other Promises fo Us, You promise that:

- You will not remove the Vehicle from the United Stales or Canada,

~ You will not sell, rent, lease or otherwisa transfer any interest in the Vehicle or this Contract without our written parmission,

- You will not expose the Vehicle to misuse or confiscation,

= Youwill not permit any other lien or security interest to be placed on the Vehicie.

- Youwill preserve and protect the Vehicle and keep it in good condition and rapair,

= You will not use the Vehicle in a trade or business without our written consent.

= You will nat use the Vehicle unjawfully or abandon it, 1 a gevernmental agency impounds the Vehicle, You will notify Us immediately and
regain possession of the Vehicle, We may regain possession of the Vehicle and treat it as a defaulf,

- You will pay all taxes, assessments, rentals, charges, and other fees imposed on the Vehicle when they are due. If We pay any repair bills,
storage bills, taxes. fines, fees, or other charges on the Vehicle, You agree o repay the amount to Us.

= You will permit Us to inspect the Vehicle at any reasonable time.

- Youwill prompliy sign, or cause others to sign, and give Us any documents We reasonably request to perfect our security interest.

- You have not made and will not make an unirue, misteading or incomplete statement in a credit application, this Contract or any information
provided in connection with this Confract,

- Youwill promptly provide Us with any additional personal or financial information concerning You or any information about the Vehicle that We may
reasonably request from time to time.
You will immediately notify Us if You change Your name or address.

Prepayraent. You have the nght to prepay Your account balance early without a penalty. f You prepay in fulf, You may be entifed to a refund credit
of part of the pra-computed finance charge. This credit will be calculated in accardance with the setuarial method, We will apply the credit to the
amaunt You owe Us or if You paid Us maore than the amount owad to Us under this Contract, We will refund it fo You. A minimuim finance charge
of $25 may be charged. We will not credit or refund amcunts less than $1.00,

if You prepay oaly a portion of the balance remaining under this Contract, We will apply the prepayment to Your account balance, however a
prepayiment will not excyse any later scheduled payments. You must still make all scheduled payments on tirmne untd Your obiigation under this
Contract is paid in full. cayment or payments may be less the hedule ]

You make a partial prepayment Your last

i ' | ' the
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Contracl, If You do not have physical damage insurance which covers both the interest of You and Us in the Vehicle, then We ma buy it for You, if
We do not buy physical damage insurance which covers both interests in the Vehicle, We may, if We decide, buy insurance which covers only our
interest, to the extent permitied by law,

We are under no sbligation te buy any insurance, but may do 50 if We desire. If We buy either of these coverages, We will et You know what type
it is and the charge You must pay, The amount You must Fay will be the premium for the insurance and a finance charge at the Annual Percentage
Rate shown on this Contract You agree to pay the amount and finance charge in equal instaliments along with the payments shown or the Payment
Schedule.

if the Vehicle is lost or damaged, You agree that We can use any insurance settiement efther to repair the Vehicle or apply to Your account balance.
If applied to Your accaunt balance. the insurance setfiement proceeds that do not pay Your obiigation in full under this Contract will be applied as a
partial paymerd.

Optional Insurance, Maintenarnce or Service Contracts, This Contract may cantain charges for optional insUrance, maintenance, service or
warranty contracts. Ifthe Vehicle is repossessed, You agree that We may claim benefits under these contracts and terminate them to obitain refunds
of unaarned charges.

insurance, Maintenance, Service or Other Contract Charges Returned to Us. [f any charge for required insurance is retumed to Us, it may be
credited {0 Your account in accordance with the Prepayment section of this Contract or Used 1o buy similar insurance which covers only our interest
in the Vehicle. Any refund on optional insurance, mainténance, service, warranty or other contracts obtained by Us will be credited to Yaur account in
accordance with tze Prepayment section of this Contract.

Dafault and Acceleration of the Contract. You will be in default if:
You fail to pay any amount due under this Contract when it is due.
You break any of Your other promises You made in this Contract, .
A proceeding in bankruptey, receivership or insolvency s started by You or against You or Your property,

i You are in default of this Contract, We may declare the entire unpaid balance of this Contract due and payable immediately at any time without

notice fo You, unless We are required by jaw o provide You with such notice and subject fo an% right You may have to cure the default, In figuring what
You owe, We will give You a refund of part of the Finance Charge figured the same as if You ha prepaid Your obligation under this Contract in full,

gﬁf} Buyer’s Initials l@
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ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Starter Interruption Device and GPS. You understand and agree that if You are in default, We may use any starter interruption device and/or
global positicning system (collectively, the Device) instalied on the Vehicle to prevent the Vehicle from starting and/or to locate the Vehicle when
permissible law and the terms of this Contract allow Us to repossess the Vehicle. You agree that if the Vehicle is disabled, You will nead to cure
Your default in order to restart the Vehicle. You acknowledge that You have been provided with & toll free telephone number that You may call, no
more than once per month, if the Vehicle is disabled but You need an emergency activation which will allow the Vehicle to operate for 24 hours
Refer o the terms and conditions of the Buyar's Disclosure for additional information on the Davice

Repossession of the Vehicle. If You default, We may take (repossess) the Vehicle from You after We give You any notice the aw requires. To
repossess the Vehicle, We can enter Your property, or the property where the Vehicle is stored, so long as it is done peacefully and the law allows
it. Any accessories, equipment or replacements will remain with the Vehicle, You hereby acknowledge and agree that any personal property
contained within the Vehicle may be removed and held without liability to Us or our agent. Itis Your respansibility to promptly and immediately
gontact Us to make arrangaments for the return of Your personal property. You are responsible for paying all reascnable charges associated with
he repossassion,

Getting the Vehicle Back After Reégossession. if We repossess the Vehicle, You have the right {0 pay fo get it back (redeem) at any time before
We ssll, lease, license or otherwise dispose of any or all of the Vehicle in its presant condition or following any commercially reasonablé preparation
or processing.

Sale of the Repossessed Vehicle. Any notice that is required to be given to You of an intended sale or transfer of the Vahicle will be mailad to
Your tast known address, as reflected 1 OUr records, in a reasenable period before the date of the intended sale or transfer {or such other pericd
oftime as is required by taw). If the Vehicle is sold, We will use ths net proceeds of the sale to pay all or part of Your dabt.

The net proceeds of the sale will be figured this way: Any charges for taking, holding, preparing for sale, and selting the Vehicle, and any attorngy
fees and court costs, if permitted by law, will be subtracted from the selling price,

If You owe Us less than the net proceads of sale, We will pay You the difference. unless We are required 1o pay it to someone else. For example,
We may be required to pay a lender who has given You a foan and has also taken a security interast in the Vehicle.

If You owe more than the net proceeds of sale, You will pay Us the difference batween the net proceeds of sale and what You owe when We ask far
it, unless the law provides otherwise. If You do not pay this amount when asked, You may also be charged interest at the highest lawful rate unil You
do pay all You owe to Us,

Collection Casts, If We hire an attorney to collect what Yot owe and the altomey is not our salaried employee, You will pay the attorney's fee not
to exceed 15% of the amount due and payable under the Cantract, and any court costs as permitted by law.

Delay In Enforcing Rights and Changes of this Contract. We can detay or refrain from enforeing any of our rights under this Contract without fosing
them. For exampie, We can exiend the time for making same payments without extending others. Any charige in the terms of this Contract must be in
writing and sigred by Us. No oral changes are hinding. I any part of this Contract is not valid, all other parts will remain enforceable.
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Interest After Maturity. You further agree to ruay ntergst at the Annual Pefcentagge Rate stated on page 1 of this Contract or at the highest rate
permitted by applicable law, on any amounts that remain unpaid after maturity of this Contract. For the purposes of this pravision, malurity means
the earlier of the date Your final payment is due or the date We acoslerate tha Contract,

Judgment Rate. Inferest on any {yd merit awarded on this Cantract will be af the Annual Percentage Rate stated on page 1 of this Contract or at
the highest rate permitied by applicable law.

Gaverning Law. The terms of this Contract are governed by Iaw of the state of the Seller's address shown on page 1 of this Cantract, except to
the extent preempted by applicable federal law,

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Seller heraby assigns and transfers all Seller's riah , fitle and interest in and to this Contract, and in and
to the Vehicle described herein, to CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION (“Assignee”), its successors and assigns, pursuant o
and in accordance with the terme and conditions set forth in the existing dealer agresment between Seller and Assignee in effect
on the date hereof. Seller gives Assignee full power, either in Assignee’s name or In Sefler's name, to take all actions which Seller
could have taken under this Contract. In order to induce Assignee to accept assignment of this Contract, Seller represents and
warrants to Assignee as set forth in the existing dealer agreement.

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT: The Seller has assigned this Contract to Credit Acceptance Corporation in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth on Baﬁe 4 of this Contract. This asmmment is without recourse, You must
make all future aﬁments to: CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION, 25505 WEST TWELVE MILE ROAD-SUITE 3000,
SOUTHFIELD, M?C IGAN 480634-3339, 1-{B00)-634-1506. ,

" Selier: ROCKY MOUNTAIN AUTO BROKERS INC By \ Racky Rodviguey ] Tile: AGENT
il ———y
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ARBITRATION CLAUSE

This Arbitration Clause describes how a Dispuie (as defined below) may be arbitrated. Arbitration is a method of resolving disputes in front of
one or more neutral persons, instead of having a trial in court in front of a judge and/or | r%/. In this Arbitration Clause, "We” and "Us® mean Sellar
and/or Seller's assignee (including, without limitation, Credit Acceptance Corporation) or their employees, assignees, or any third party providin
any goods or services in connection with the originatian, servicing and collection of amounts due under the Contract if such third party is nameg
as a parly between You and Us. "You” and "Your’ means each Buyer named above,

Your Right to Reject: if You don’t want this Arbitration Clause to apply, You may reject it by matiing Us at P.O, Box 8070, Southfield,

Michigan 48088-5070 a wriiten rejection notice that describes the Contract and tefls Us that You are rejecting this Arbitration Clause.

A rejection notice is only effective if it is signed by all buyers, co-buyers and cosigners and the envelope that the rejection notice is

sent in has a post mark of 30 days or less after the date of this Coniract. If You reject this Arbitration Clause, that will not affect any

gtl;er Ef)rt?_,y:%on f?f tl;:s Contract or the status of Your Contract. If You don't reject this Arbitration Clause, it will be effective as of the
afe of this Contract,

A "Dispute” is any confroversy or claim between You and Us arising out of or in any way related to this Contract, including, but not limited to,
any defsult under this Contract, the coliection of amounts due under this Contract, the purchase, sale, delivery, set-up, quality of the Vehicle,
advartising for the Vehicle or its financing, or any product or service included in this Contract. “Dispuie” shalf have the broadest meaning possible,
and includes contract claims, and claims based on tort, violations of laws, statutes, ordinances or regulations or any other l=gal of equitable
theories. Notwithstanding the foregoing, “‘Dispute” does not include any individual action brought by You in small claims court or Your state's
aquivalent court, unless such action is transferred, remaoved or appealed to a different court, “Disputg” does not inciude an repossession of the
Vehicle upon Your default and any exercise of the power of sale of the Vehicle under this Contract or any individual action by You to prevent Us
from using any such remedy, 80 {ong as such individual action does not involve a request for monetary relief of any kind. In addition, “dispute”
does not include disputes about the validity, enforceability, coverage or scape of this Arbitration Clause or any part thereof (including, without
limitation, the Class Action Waiver describad in the sixth paragraph of this Arbitration Clause, the last sentence of the seventh paragraph of this
Arbitration Clause andfor tnis sertence); all such disputes are or @ court and not an arbitrator to decide. However, any dispute or argument that
concems the validity or enforceability of the Contract as a whole is for the arbitrator. not a court, 1o decicle.

if a Dispute arises, the complainin%pa,rty shall give the other party a written Dispute Notice and a reasonable oppartunity, not less than 30 days, to
resolve the Dispute. Any Dispule Notice to You will be sent In writing to the address on this Contract (or any updated address You subsequertly

rovide 10 Us). Any Dispute Notice to Us must be sent by mail to: Credit Acceptance, Attn: Corporate Le al, 25505 West Twelve Mile Road, Suite
3000, Southfield, Michigan 48034-8336 (or any updated address We subsequently provide to You). Any Jispute Notice You send must give Your
Account Number, telephone number and address.  Any Dispute Notice must exgiam the nature of the Dispute and the relief that is demanded.
The complaining party must reasonably cooperate in providing any information about the Dispute that the other party reasonably requests.

Either You or We may require any Dispute to be arbitrated and may do 50 before or after a iawsuit has been started over the Dispute or with
respect to other Disputes or counterclaims brought later in the lawsuit. 1If You or We elect to arbitrate a Dispute, this Arpitration Clause applies. A
Dispute shail be fully resolved by binding arbitration. Judgment on the arbitration award may be entered in any court with jurisdiction. Al statutes
of imitation that othenwise woulki appiy to an action brought in court will apply in arbitration. The arbitrator is authorized to award all remedies

armitied by the substantive law that would apply if the action were pending in court, including, without limitation, punitive damages (which shall
oe governed by the Constitutional standards employed by the courts) and attorneys’ fees and costs.

If You or We efect to arbifrate a Dispute, neither You nor We will have the right to pursue that Dispute in court or have 2 jury resolve that dispute.
In addition, if You or We elect to arbitrate a Dispule, () neither You nor We may participate in a class action in court or in a dass-wide arbitration,
either as a plaintilf, defendant or class member, (b) neither You nor We may act as a private attorney general in court or in arbitration: (c) Disputes
brought by or against You ma}/ not be joined or consolidated with Disputes brought by or against any ather person; and (d) the arbitrator shall have
no power or authority to conduct a class-wide arbitration, private atlorney general arbitration or joinad or consolidated arbitration (this sentence
including subparts a through d hereof is referred 1o in this Arbi
eyt E & = S ‘:l
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tion Clause as the "Clags Action Waiver”). In the event there is an agreement
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Contract, 1f any provision of this Arbitration Clause other than the Class Action Walver is invalid or unenforceable under the Federal Arbitration
Act or any other aé)f)lfcab!e faw, the invalid or unenforceable provision shall be inapplicable and deemed omitled, but shall not invalidate the rest
of this Arbitration Clause, and shall not diminish the parties’ obiigiat:on to arbitrate Disputes subject o this Arbitration Clause. In the event that the
Class Action Waiver is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, then, subject to the right to appeal such a ruling, this entire Arhitration Clause
{except for this senience) shall be nuil and void.

1

i,

Whoever first efects arbitration may choose to arbilrate under the rules and procedures of either JAMS or the American Arbitration Assaciation;
however in tha event of a conflict between these ruies and procedures and the provisions of this Arbitration Clause, You and We agree that
this Arbitration Clause govems for that specific conflict. You may obtain the rules and procedures, information on fees and costs (including
waiver of the fees), and other materials, and may file a claim by contacting the organization of Your choice. The addresses and websites of the
organizations aret JAMS, 1920 Main Street, Suite 300, vine, CA 82614, www jamsadr.comn ; and American Arbitration Association, 335 Madison
Avenue, Floor 10, New York, New York 10017-4605, www.adr.org. If neither JAMS nor the American Arbitration Association is able or willing to
serve, and You and We can't otherwise agree on a substitute administrator or arbitrator, then a court with appropriate jurisdiction shall appoint
an arbitrator. We will consider any good faith request You make fo Us to pay the administrator’s or arbitrator's filing, administrative, hearing and/
or ather fees If You cannot obtain’ @ waiver of such feas from the administrator and We will not seek or accept reimbursement of any such fees.
We will hear the expense of our altorneys, experts and witnesses, except where applicable faw and this Contract allow Us to recover attormeys'
fees and/or court cosls in a collection action We bring.  You will bear the expense of Your atiorneys. experis and witnesses if We prevail in
an aroitration.  However, in an arbitration You commence, We will pay Your fees if You prevail or if We must bear such fees in order for this
Arbitration Clause to be enforced. Also, We will bear any fees if applicable law requires Us to. The arbitrator may decide that an in-person hearing
is unnecessary and that ha or she can resolve the Dispute based on the papers submitted by You or Us and/or through a telephonic hearing.
However, any arbitration hearing that You attend will take place at a location that is reasonably convenient to You. Notice of the time, date and
location shall be provided to You and Us under the rules and procedures of the arbitration erganization salected.

The arbitrator's decision is final and binding, except for any right of appeal provided by the Federal Arbitration Act, 6 U.5.C, §§ 1 et Seq, ("FAA™.
However, if the amount of the Dispute exceeds $50,000 or involves a request for injunctive or declaratory relief that could foreseeably involve a
cost or heneiit to either parly exceading $50,000, any party can appeal the award to a three-arbitrator panel administered by the Adiinjstrator,
which panel shall reconsider. any aspect of the initial award requesied by the appealing party. The decision of the panel shall be by majority vote.
Reference in this Arbitration Clause to “the arbitrator” shall mean the panel of arbitrators if an appeal of the arbitrator's degision has been taken.
The costs of such an appeal will be borne in accordance with the section of this Arbifration Clause that describes who will bear the costs for the
initial proceeding before a single arbitrator.

It is expressly agreed that this Contract evidences a fransaction in interstale commerce. This Arhitration Clause is governed by the FAA and not

by any state arbitration law. wre @
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AUTHORIZATION FOR ELECTRONIC RECURRING PAYMENTS

T hereby authorize Western Union Financial Services, Inc. (the “Billing Company”) and Credit Acceptance Corporation, through the bank of their choosing,
Lo initiate electronic debit entries to (or o otherwise cause Tunds to be withdrawn from) the checking or savings account at the bank named below for the
purpose of making the payments on the below account with Credit Acceptance Corporation, The debiis are to commence on the First Debit Date listed below
in the amounts and frequency under Section (E), entitled Debit Information. T also authorize Billing Company and Credit Acceptance to change the
frequency of the debils; the dates of (he debits: and the bank and bank accounts from which the debils will be taken provided 1 give Billing Company or
Credit Acceptance Corporation notice by telephoae, fax or in writing, (See Contact Information Below)

T direct Billing Company to deduct from the bank account the Periodic Fayment payable o Credit Aceeptance Corporation and (o (ransimit the Periodic
Payment to Credit Acceptance. This Authorization shall remain in full force and effect until Billing Company or Credit Acceptance has received notification
from me by telephone, fax, or in writing, of its termination in such time and in such wanner as to sfford Billing Company reasonable opportunity to act on it.
(See Contact Information Below). This Authorization may be suspended by Billing Company or Credit Acceptance without notification to me for reasons
dictated by operation of law, rule, regulation, payment in foll of the underlying obligation; or for risk management prrposes. I understand that this recurring
electronic debit program enroliment is voluntary and is not required as a condition to the extension of credit.

{(A) CUSTOMER DATA (D) CREDITOR INFORMATION
MICKEY THRASHER Company to be Paid: Credit Acceptance Corporation
6120 CHAMPLIN DR, Apt. # 212 Collector Code: CAPS
FOUNTAIN, CO 80817 Please apply my payments to account # . 7886
(B} BANK ACCOUNT HOLDER (E) DEBIT INFORMATION
(Complete if different from above) Monthly Payment Amount: § 307 .23 _
MICKEY THRASHER Periodic Payment: $ 307 .23

Please debit the bank account the following Periodic Payment amount:
$307.23 once a month on 27th

6120 CHAMPLIN DR , 212
FOUNTAIN, CO B80B17

Due Date. Form mugl be received by 01/27/2018 in order

to have the account activated and started on time.

Name of Bank: Bank of America, National Asso After activation, if you need to make changes to your information, you
must call a minimum of two (2) business days prior to your dehit date.

Bank Routing Number (9 Digits): __ For weekly and biweekly payment frequencies, if the calendar month has
an additional pay period, we will make an additional debic from the Bank
Bank Account Number: ___

Account.
This Account is: £Checking (or} “Savings (or) ~ Money Muarket

e5lgned By
Wickey “Thnasken
~Doc 27, 2047 &:45;28 FM EST

Signature of Bank Account Holder

DATE: 12/27/2017

Henderson Servicing Center & Training Facility
C/0O Customer Service

Contact Information . 2460 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 110
To enroll, change or cancel this Autherization, or Henderson, NV 80074
if you have questions, please contact us at Facsimile Number: 866-610-G984

Customer Service: 888-857-7377

Hours of Operation: Mon - Fri. § aim. — 11 p.m. and Sat. 8 a.an. — 5 p.m, (Eastern)
OR Access your account at www.creditacceptance, com, Use account womber and last 4-digits of driver’s SSN.

@2012 Copyright Credu Acceptance Corporation. All Rights Reserved,

The onginal relail Ingtailment conéract ks asaigned fo Credit Acceptance Corporation,
This copy was craated an 12/272017
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other ﬁapers as required by law, except as provided
by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of Initiating
(SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (@) PLAINTIFFS
Mickey Thrasher and Kimberly Cyr

JS44 (Rev.12/11) District of Colorado Form

the civil docket sheet.

DEFENDANTS

Rocky Mountain Auto Brokers, Inc.
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(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)
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3 196 Franchise Injury O 385 Property Damage Leave Act 3 895 Freedom of Information
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0 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 3 442 Employment Habeas Corpus: 0 871 IRS—Third Party O 950 Constitutionality of
3 240 Torts to Land 3 443 Housing/ 3 530 General 26 USC 7609 State Statutes
O 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations O 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION
0 290 All Other Real Property 3 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 3 540 Mandamus & Other |33 462 Naturalization Application
Employment [ 550 Civil Rights 3 463 Habeas Corpus -
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31 Original O 2 Removed from O 3 Remanded from O 4 Reinstatedor O 5 . Giher districc & 6 Multidistrict O Magistrate
Proceeding State Court Appellate Court Reopened (specify) Litigation Judgment

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
15 U.S.C. § 1693

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

Brief description of cause: O AP Docket
Violation of the Electronic Fund Transfer Act
VIl. REQUESTED IN 0 CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

COMPLAINT: UNDER F.R.C.P. 23 JURY DEMAND: O Yes (0 No
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required
by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the
use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil
complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

l. (a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only
the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving
both name and title.

(b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land condemnation
cases, the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section “(see attachment)”.

1. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.C.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an “X” in one
of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.

United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box.

Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the
Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box
1 or 2 should be marked.

Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of
the different parties must be checked. (See Section 111 below; federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)

I1l.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this section
for each principal party.

(AVA Nature of Suit. Place an “X” in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is
sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerks in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than one nature of
suit, select the most definitive.

V. Origin. Place an “X” in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441. When the petition
for removal is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.

Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict
litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407. When this
box is checked, do not check (5) above.

Appeal to District Judge from Magistrate Judgment. (7) Check this box for an appeal from a magistrate judge’s decision.

VI.  Cause of Action. Reportthe civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes
unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 ) .

Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

Or: “AP Docket”
VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.

Demand. In this space enter the dollar amount (in thousands of dollars) being demanded or indicate other demand such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
District of Colorado
Mickey Thrasher and Kimberly Cyr, on behalf of
themselves and all others similary situated ;
Plaintiff )
V. ) Civil Action No.
Rocky Mountain Auto Brokers, Inc. ;
)

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Rocky Mountain Auto Brokers, Inc.
4912 Carrera Pt.
Colorado Springs, CO 80923

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Russell S. Thompson IV

Thompson Consumer Law Group, PLLC
5235 E Southern Ave, D106-618
Mesa, AZ 85206

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(3 | personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

(3 | left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or
3 | served the summons on (name of individual) , Who is
designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) , or
(3 | returned the summons unexecuted because ;or
3 Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

e W Seers




ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Rocky Mountain Auto Brokers Sued Over Mandatory Automatic Payment Requirement in Installment

Contracts
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